
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday 6 July 2022 
7.00 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London  
SE1 2QH 

 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Ian Wingfield (Chair) 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Ellie Cumbo 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Sunny Lambe 
Councillor Margy Newens 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor Leo Pollak 
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted Member) 
Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer (Co-opted Member) 
Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted Member) 
Mannah Kargbo (Co-opted Member) 
 

Councillor Rachel Bentley 
Councillor Sam Dalton 
Councillor Sam Foster 
Councillor Esme Hicks 
Councillor Emily Hickson 
Councillor Sarah King 
Councillor Richard Leeming 
Councillor Graham Neale 
Councillor Sandra Rhule 
Councillor Michael Situ 
Councillor Cleo Soanes 
 

 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda 
as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, 
an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this 
meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at 
the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on 
building access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the 
council’s web site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


 
Contact 
Everton Roberts on 020 7525 7221  or email: everton.roberts@southwark.gov.uk     
 

 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Althea Loderick 
Chief Executive 
Date: 28 June 2022 
 

 
 



 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday 6 July 2022 
7.00 pm 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item No. Title Page No. 

 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an 
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

1 - 22 

 To approve as a correct records the Minutes of the meetings held 
on 2 March and 21 May 2022. 
 

 

5. NEW CHIEF EXECUTIVE, SOUTHWARK COUNCIL 
 

 

 To hear from Althea Loderick the new chief executive of Southwark 
Council. 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

6. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AND COMMISSION WORK 
PROGRAMMES 2022-23 

 

23 - 39 

 To consider and agree work programmes for the overview and 
scrutiny committee and its commissions for the 2022-23 year. 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING. 
 

 

  
 

 

 
Date:  28 June 2022 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 



1 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on 
Wednesday 2 March 2022 at 7.00 pm at 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Ian Wingfield (Chair) 

Councillor Victor Chamberlain (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Humaira Ali 
Councillor Peter Babudu 
Councillor Jack Buck 
Councillor Gavin Edwards 
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall 
Councillor Margy Newens 
Councillor Leanne Werner 
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted Member) 
 
 

OTHER MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Stephanie Cryan, Cabinet Member for Council 
Homes and Homelessness 
Councillor Helen Dennis, Cabinet Member for Climate 
Emergency and Sustainable Development 
Councillor Kieron Williams, Leader of the Council 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Norman Coombe, Deputy Head of Law 
Everton Roberts, Head of Scrutiny 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sarah King, Councillor Victoria Olisa 
and Marcin Jagodzinski, co-opted member. 
 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 There were no additional late items. 
 
The chair informed the committee that supplemental agenda No.1 contained the minutes 
of the meeting held on 21 February 2022. 
 
Supplemental Agenda No. 2 contained the proposed cabinet response to the overview and 

1
Agenda Item 4



2 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

scrutiny committee recommendations on the Southwark Climate Emergency and Action 
Plan. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations. 
 

4. MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2022 be approved as a 
correct record. 

 

5. SOUTHWARK'S CLIMATE STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN - UPDATE FROM 
CABINET MEMBER FOR CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT  

 

 The committee received an update from Councillor Helen Dennis, Cabinet Member 
for Climate Emergency and Sustainable Develop on timelines for actioning the 
recommendations of the overview and scrutiny committee. 
 
Councillor Dennis reported that the proposed cabinet response to overview and 
scrutiny committee recommendations was due to be considered by cabinet on 8 
March 2022.  Councillor Dennis welcomed the overview and scrutiny committee’s 
recommendations and explained that a number of the recommendations were 
already in line with what the council was planning to do in terms of the review of 
the strategy and action plan. 
 
Councillor Dennis also reported that the strategy and action plan would be 
submitted to cabinet for review in July 2022 (and not September which had been 
previously stated in error).  The timing of the review would enable cabinet to take 
account of recommendations from the Citizens Jury which was publishing its report 
in the week, and also take account of any future commitments in the Borough Plan 
after May 2022 elections.   
 
Councillor Dennis also reported that a meeting launch was taking place on 3 March 
which would be bringing together members of the citizens’ jury, councillors, other 
stakeholders, partners and people involved in the oversight panel.  A further event 
was also scheduled to take place on 10 March which was open to members of the 
public to attend and ask questions.  The public would also be able to hear from the 
citizens’ jury as well.  The event was being publicised through social media and 
newsletters. 
 
The committee also heard from Tom Sharland, Climate Change Programme Lead 
who reported on the establishment of internal governance structures, tracking of 
teams, risk, and key milestones, and the strengthening of the SMART actions 

2



3 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

which were being done over the coming months. 
 
Following the initial presentations, questions and discussion were held around the 
following: 
 

 The sharing of an overarching project plan with the future committee 

 Timelines for review of the various associated strategies (Southwark Plan, 
Movement Plan, Air Quality, Fairer Future procurement framework) 

 Councillor training on climate strategy – the need for contribution of external 
experts 

 Training, communications and other measures required to achieve culture 
shift needed in the Council to get all staff thinking about tackling climate 
emergency through their work 

 How the council will work with the third sector and communities around the 
next iteration of the climate action plan 

 Next steps following Citizens Jury 

 Biggest obstacles going forward. 
 
Action point – Councillor Dennis to write to the committee with timeline for review 
of the various strategies to inform future scrutiny activity. 
 

6. CABINET MEMBER INTERVIEW - COUNCILLOR KIERON WILLIAMS, LEADER OF 
THE COUNCIL  

 

 In introducing the item the Chair informed the committee of the areas the Leader of 
the Council had been asked to cover as part of his initial presentation which were 
as follows: 
 

 a year end overview of Council’s services,  

 a projection going forward,  

 a paper with a roll up summary of the Council themes and performance over 
the last 4 years, including information on where the Council has exceeded 
and where it has fallen short, along with lessons learned. 

 
The chair reported that the Leader had provided the committee with a copy of the 
Borough Plan interim performance report which set out much of the detail 
requested.  The Borough Plan interim performance report was due to be 
considered by the cabinet on 8 March 2022. 
 
Councillor Kieron Williams provided the committee with a brief overview of council 
achievements over the past few years. 
 
In his introduction, Councillor Williams expressed that in looking back over the last 
4 years, that it had been a difficult period due to government funding cuts and the 
pandemic.  He thanked council staff and partner organisations, the voluntary 
sector, and councillors for the work done during that period and support to 
residents. 

3



4 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

 
Councillor Williams made reference to the Borough Plan interim performance 
report which set out a lot of detail of what the council had been doing and 
encouraged the committee members to read it.  Councillor Williams indicated that 
an incredible amount had been achieved, and in addition, the council’s response to 
the Covid pandemic. 
 
Councillor Williams highlighted some of the initiatives undertaken relating to the 
council’s response to the Covid pandemic, the building of council homes, the 
apprenticeship scheme, improvement of social care, the agreement of the ethical 
care charter for residential care that would drive up care, the 95% achievement of 
schools rated good or outstanding, and the working with schools to help pupils 
catch up [in light of pandemic], the rolling out of mental health support for children, 
improvements on the environment [school streets, low traffic neighbourhoods, 
cycle lanes, road crossings, installation of heat pumps on housing estates 
mentioned].   
 
Councillor Williams expressed a heartfelt thank you to everyone who had helped 
with the delivery of those council initiatives and council services throughout the 
pandemic. 
  
The Leaders presentation was followed up by questions from committee members. 
 
Questions and discussion were held around the following: 
 

 How the council can deliver transport infrastructure needed, with the funds 
that the council has available to it [context – challenging relationship with 
Government and GLA currently, due to unaligned priorities] 

 Other opportunities for the council where it can directly deliver, where it was 
felt the government is letting residents down. 

 Residents accessibility to council services, and how this is being measured 

 Areas focus that the council will now need to think differently about in light of 
pandemic 

 Areas not delivered on that the Leader would have liked to have achieved 

 Increase in people sleeping on the streets 

 LGBTQ cultural space in Bankside – extension of tenancy, and marketing of 
permanent space in Bankside Yard 

 Climate Strategy and Housing Strategy - Meeting zero carbon target whilst 
needing to continue building new council homes in the borough 

 Consideration of converting any empty office space into council homes 

 Growing ethnic pay gap 

 Projections for funding package from government over the coming year 

 Recent decisions relating to Ivydale School [Proposed closure of Inverton 
Road site and reversal of decision]. 

 

4



5 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

7. CABINET MEMBER INTERVIEW - COUNCILLOR STEPHANIE CRYAN, CABINET 
MEMBER FOR COUNCIL HOMES AND HOMELESSNESS  

 

 In introducing the item the Chair informed the committee of the areas the cabinet 
member for council homes and homelessness had been asked to cover as part of 
her initial presentation which were as follows: 
 

 The delivery of new homes and estate renewal 

 Temporary accommodation (and conditions) 

 Allocations 

 Repairs  

 Fire Safety/Cladding 
 
Councillor Stephanie Cryan provided the committee with a brief overview of issues 
in connection with the areas requested. 
 
Delivery of new homes - Councillor Cryan reported that the council was on target 
to build 2500 new council homes by May 2022.   
 
Temporary accommodation - Councillor Cryan reported that there were ongoing 
pressures with Temporary Accommodation (TA). There were currently 3500 
households in TA, the numbers were however expected to go down.  Councillor 
Cryan explained that it was getting harder to find homes in Southwark, and within 
London, particularly with the local housing allowance rates, the cost the council 
had to pay for those of rent, competing with other London Boroughs, payment of 
landlord fees, the cumulative effect being increasing costs in TA.  Councillor Cryan 
stressed that the Council would always provide help and support to people who are 
homeless where it can, but there was a need to look at how costs could be 
maintained, and there was a Budget Recovery Group established to look at how 
this could be done without sacrificing the service provided. 
 
Allocations - Councillor Cryan informed the committee that a new housing 
allocations policy would be submitted to cabinet in the autumn.  Consultation on 
the policy was undertaken last year, and the council was working through the 
results of the consultation.  Councillor Cryan reported that an Individual Cabinet 
Member decision was due to be made prior to the pre-election period which would 
see a change in the local lettings policy [increased to 100%], so that more people 
from a local area could stay in their local area, enabling them to access support 
networks and stay in their local community.  There would also be a change in the 
definition of ‘deliberate overcrowding’ which needed to be changed. 
 
Repairs – Councillor Cryan report that there was a regular scrutiny review of the 
Housing Repairs improvement plan.  The improvement plan had been put in place, 
but stopped due to Covid, resulting in the need for safe working practices for both 
workers and residents which meant a lot of internal repairs could not be carried 
out.  The council was currently working through a backlog, which was now down to 
around approximately 300 cases.  The council wanted to look at having a 
dedicated repairs contact centre that sat within the housing department, (and not 

5



6 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

customer services), and with trained housing operatives that could help support the 
system as well.  This would enable residents to track repairs from start to finish 
and no repair signed off until residents were satisfied with a repair. 
 
Fire Safety and cladding – Councillor Cryan informed the meeting that there was 
not any cladding on council owned buildings.  She did however have responsibility 
for cladding issues.  Councillor Cryan reported that the council was recognising 
best practice in terms of private landlords and enforcement of remedial works for 
the removal of cladding.  The council also provided support to housing 
associations.  Councillor Cryan advised the committee that the biggest issue in 
terms of building safety was the Building Safety Act and its implications relating to 
high rise buildings.  Southwark has 170 high rise buildings (the highest number in 
England) and the financial impact on the Housing Revenue Account was going to 
be significant.  A pilot survey was being undertaken in Andoversford Court, 
Peckham.  This building was chosen due to its unique layout and also because it 
was TMO run and the council wanted to learn how it could liaise with TMO’s 
around this issue.  Surveys had been undertaken, along with 3d modelling of the 
building.  Councillor Cryan explained that under the Act, the council was required 
to know about the structure, and fabric of a building, and also about the residents 
and their lifestyles to have a whole picture.  This was an intensive piece of work 
that would be undertaken for every high rise building and would be rolled out over 
5 years.  Safety works would be built into that programme as well. 
 
The committee also heard from Michael Scorer, Strategic Director of Housing and 
Modernisation. 
 
The cabinet member’s presentation was followed up by questions of the 
committee. 
 
Questions and discussion were held around the following: 
 

 Performance of Southwark Repairs (formerly Southwark Building Services 
(SBS)) and addressing backlog 

 Building on green spaces, and opposition of residents 

 Quality of major works in TMO properties 

 Working across local authority borders – housing swaps / lettings 

 Cost of investment into ageing housing stock 

 Senior managers taking responsibility and ownership in light of ending of 
client model, and repairs coming back in house 

 Number of social homes developed by private developers since 2010 

 Relationship with housing associations and removal of cladding on housing 
association properties 

 Impact of energy price rise on residents and leaseholders using district 
heating networks 

 Council advice/recommendations to tenants (and private tenants) on energy 
efficiency/how to improve insulation to homes. 

 

6



7 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

8. SCRUTINY REVIEW OF REGENERATION IN THE BOROUGH OF SOUTHWARK - 
DRAFT REPORT  

 

 The committee considered and agreed recommendations to be put forward to the 
cabinet in light of the scrutiny review. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the following recommendations be included in the scrutiny review report for 
submission to cabinet. 
 
1.  The Council should review its consultation procedures for major 

regeneration projects. The review should take on board the following 
aspects: 

 
(i)  ensure before embarking on any regeneration  exercise an audit of the 

current situation in a given locality as contained in the Council’s 
Development Charter of the provision services, amenities, housing, 
transport, businesses, schools, GP surgeries, etc. This audit should be 
complied and agreed with local community groups, tenants and 
residents associations, businesses and potential developers, and then 
incorporated into a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). 

 
(ii)  specifically the Council should be mindful and include at all times of the 

given needs of a locality particularly in terms of the 9 protected 
characteristics in reducing inequalities and meeting housing need, and 
the impact a given scheme would have on the local residents sense of 
belonging and pride of place in an area. 

 
(iii)  evolve a Community Consultation Framework similar to the Lambeth 

Council model and incorporating the Council’s own initiatives such as 
the Local Development Study in Camberwell, to enable local residents, 
tenants and residents associations, businesses and community groups 
to comment on identifying concerns with a masterplan in terms of 
design, content or omission. 

 
(iv)  creating on-going consultative forums through the life of a regeneration 

project and the passed programming of works such as the Community 
Review Panel model on the Old Kent Road regeneration scheme. 

 
Reasons: 
 
Walworth Society 
 
-  “Need for strong business voice and the co-ordination of support for the 

businesses.” 
 
-  “Need for local groups to be able to participate actively with officers and 

7



8 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

councillors in developing a vision for, and contributing to the 
development and improvement of the area.” 

 
Living Bankside 
 
-  “Consultation missing protected characteristics – voices of people from 

BME, LGBT, or women, or on lower incomes are not necessarily always 
heard or their needs are not necessarily incorporated within wider plans 
or specific development proposals that come in an area.  This may 
impact on sense of belonging and pride of place, and a lot of people feel 
that because they're not able to influence and impact change in their 
neighbourhood, feel the place is becoming something not for them.” 

 
-  “Things are being proposed or suggested in an area which are not 

necessarily wanted, better communication needed at early stages and 
detailed communication before planning proposals come forward.” 

 
35% Campaign 
 
-  “Displacement of independent traders mostly from BAME backgrounds, 

some have been relocated, but many have been given nowhere to go.” 
 

SE5 Forum 
 

-  “No engagement policy for community groups or a protocol for 
community involvement, so engagement is fractured or non-existent 
(Lambeth Forum Network cited as a comparison).” 

 
-  “No plans or protocol to inform local residents or other interested groups 

about significant work in local area.  Need for agreed protocol for 
community engagement at the very beginning of any project large or 
small, including when it alters course.” 

 
Peckham Vision 

 
-  “Much community experience of ‘regeneration’ is that it is demolition-led 

with ineffective community engagement.” 
 
-  “Through a community-led approach seeing the facts on the ground 

about the existing buildings, their uses and their self regeneration 
potential for the area, the community campaigns in each case 
succeeded in reversing proposed demolition of existing buildings.” 

 
-  “All development in the name of ‘regeneration’ must start with an audit 

of the facts on the ground before any redevelopment plans are ever 
begun, and verified with the local stakeholders.” 

 
-  “The new Development Charter now requires a ‘fact-based audit’ of 

8



9 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

existing assets and uses for any planning application for redevelopment. 
But there is no guidance for its production or its role in the planning 
process. It needs to be used as a strong benchmark to ensure that the 
regeneration provides significant net benefits for the existing community. 
We would like to ask for your support for the collaborative creation of 
Council guidance in a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on 
how the fact based audit should be produced and its role in the planning 
process.” 

 
Developers 

 
-  “The provision of local intelligence being vital to successfully managing 

and progressing projects.” 
 
2.  The Council should continue to develop town centre based 

regeneration plans for the main centres of Bermondsey, Borough, 
Camberwell, Dulwich, Peckham, Rotherhithe and Walworth, that are 
regularly reviewed and recalibrated. 

 
Reasons: 
 
Walworth Society 

 
-  “Vital that a town centre plan for the future direction and day-to-day 

management is developed and delivered.” 
 

SE5 Forum 
 

-  “No consultation mechanism at which Camberwell and its town centre, 
the historic nature and specific identity of the area is regularly 
considered and reviewed, or which enables the local community to 
contribute to the area vision due to the community council being 
replaced with a Multi Ward forum which splits Camberwell between 
Walworth and Champion Hill.” 

 
3.  In the implementation of regeneration schemes the Council should seek 

to adopt the following measures as good practice: 
 

(i)  be transparent and clear as to the objectives of the project in terms of 
the potential in realising residents and businesses aspirations for the 
locality and the Council’s own preferred outcomes. 

 
(ii)  to promote the benefits of regeneration to a locality with the aim of 

evolving more integrated and sustainable communities in terms of good 
quality housing, job creation, apprenticeships, boosting the local 
economy, provision and improvement of local amenities (such as open 
spaces, green parks and trees, GP surgeries, schools, libraries, etc.), 
creating more socially diverse communities, improved educational 

9



10 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

attainment and facilities, increased community safety. 
 
(iii)  ensure that the liaison and communication with developers is 

maintained at all times and that the resultant planning applications are 
dealt with in an energised and timely manner.  

 
(iv)  that the allocation of Section 106/CiL funds be transparent and linked to 

the long-term benefits of communities and meeting their needs across 
the locality. 

 
(v)  the Council should provide a dedicated team linking all relevant services 

for each major regeneration scheme to ensure smooth progress and 
increased speed of delivery, together with more planning lawyers and 
highways staff to cover increased volumes of work. 

 
Reasons: 
 
Walworth Society  
 
-  “Need to ensure that regeneration improves employment and training 

opportunities locally both as part of the regeneration schemes through 
creating employment and also through opportunities to improve skills 
locally through mentoring and skills development.” 

 
-  “There is transparency and communication of the allocation of S106 and 

CIL funds and that these are clearly applied for the long-term benefits of 
communities across the local area and in line with identified local 
needs.” 

 
Living Bankside 

 
-  “Need for making the process for planning and regeneration much more 

transparent, accountable, and representative of the needs of Southwark 
residents.” 

 
-  “Acknowledgement of council officers and councillors having great 

relationships with local community, and in many areas works to the 
benefit of local residents, however sometimes it can feel that policy or 
the way that council officers or councillors are taking a direction, doesn't 
necessarily meet with local need.” 

 
-  “Detail in planning applications, and the borough plan, is most of the 

time missing and only after planning permission has been granted, the 
details are being discussed and the original intention of what was to be 
achieved in terms of both by the council and by local residents isn't 
always met.  Need for better mechanisms to be in place to achieve that 
detail.” 

 

10



11 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

35% Campaign 
 

-  “Local residents and businesses not necessarily getting the benefits that 
a regeneration is supposed to bring.” 

 
-  “Across the borough local people voluntarily take up local issues as they 

arise, and develop links with each other and form important local 
networks. In many cases they have a longevity and continuity of local 
knowledge which can be very valuable for planning and regeneration.  
Need to develop ways to enable this to be accessible to policy makers.  
Key issue here is the working relationship between these local ward 
activists and their ward councillors.” 

 
Developers 

 
-  “The pace and delivery of schemes across the borough and helpfulness 

in unblocking issues where they arise.” 
 
-  “A need to energise and increase the pace of the planning process (in 

some cases).” 
 
-  “A need to increase the number of planning lawyers and highways staff 

as these areas could become quite stretched due to volume of work.” 
 
-  “For major schemes, the setting up of dedicated taskforce for a project 

where a number of officers from each department (e.g. transport, 
highways, legal, environment, planning teams) are tasked and 
dedicated for a certain period of the week to progress a particular 
project – increasing the speed of delivery.” 

 
4.  Strategically the Council should seek to establish the following: 
 

(i)  publish annually income levels across the borough’s population, the 
sales and rent levels across the borough and the discrepancy between 
them. 

 
(ii)  a review of the affordable housing policy with a view to increasing the 

level of affordable housing in regeneration schemes to 50% (whilst 
retaining the social housing element of the council’s affordable housing 
policy). 

 
(iii)  embody the core principles of recycling and reuse in all regeneration 

plans in line with meeting the Council’s own objectives concerning 
climate change and sustainability.  This investigation should focus on 
how to long-term fix many housing disrepair issues in existing stock in 
order to make conditions more suitable for tenants to stay in their 
properties. 

 

11



12 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

(iv)  spell out the financial cost/benefit analysis of any given regeneration 
scheme not only concerning the loss of homes/businesses and number 
of replacement homes/businesses, but also that the viability tests reflect 
the true increase in land value over time.  

 
(v)  Undertake a cost benefit analysis that evaluates the opportunity area 

policies, and looks specifically at the comparison between large private 
sector opportunity projects being delivered, and longer term slower, but 
local authority driven projects being delivered.  This piece of work be 
brought back through the scrutiny function once it is completed. 

 
(vi)  guarantee that displaced secure tenants are offered secure tenancies 

on return to the locality, and that leaseholders are given options 
reflecting a fair market price pre-regeneration. 

 
Reasons: 
 
35% Campaign 

 
-  “Leaseholders on estates receiving far too little compensation for the 

loss of their homes and many having to leave the borough to buy new 
homes as a result.” 

 
-  “New homes being provided by regeneration are way beyond the means 

of those in the most acute housing need.  Lack of social rent properties.” 
 
-  “Not enough consideration is given to the resources of all kinds that the 

public sector puts into private developments, as well as the increases in 
land value that derive from planning approvals.  Need for better 
accounting of this, with a view to establishing whether the borough is 
getting a good return for the money it is putting into regeneration.” 

 
-  “In the case of estate regeneration - examine the pressure decanting 

council estates puts on Southwark’s housing waiting list.  There used to 
be regular reports on this at around the time of the Heygate decant, but 
this no longer seems to be done, or at least we can find no reports that 
are publicly available.” 

 
-  “Look at the practice of ending secure tenancies on estates, once they 

are marked for demolition.  While this minimises Southwark’s rehousing 
obligations it can leave some long-term, but non-secure tenants, with no 
right to a newly built home.  It also makes an estate a more transitory 
place to live and makes for less stable communities.” 

 
-  “Look at the level of leaseholder compensation. While the options for 

leaseholders may have been incrementally improved over time, the 
fundamental problem of inadequate compensation in relation to the cost 
of new free market homes remains unresolved and from the 

12



13 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

leaseholders’ point of view is iniquitous.  The committee may also wish 
to look at the take up of the various leaseholder rehousing options and 
whether these options are presented to leaseholders in a fair way and, 
in particular, whether leaseholders are being deterred from taking up the 
equity loan option.” 

 
-  “Look at Elephant Park.  When completed, this will be 2,700 units, which 

is over 200 more units than was originally consented.  The amount of 
affordable housing has been increased proportionately, but there has 
been no reassessment of the viability of the scheme and whether it 
could support a greater proportion of affordable housing.” 

 
Peckham Vision  

 
-  “Carbon emissions from demolition and new construction are a 

significant contributor to the climate emergency.  A reorientation away 
from demolition–led regeneration and a preference for re-use is 
essential for consistency with the climate emergency policies.” 

 
-  “Affordable housing still unaffordable - the Council should bring together 

and publicise annually:  
 

 the income levels of the population in the borough  

 the range of sale prices and rent levels across the borough and  

 A simple table showing the discrepancy between these.”  
 

Overview and scrutiny committee 
 

-  In respect of 4(v) the council does not appear to have undertaken a cost 
benefit analysis of these policies.  Southwark is a limited geographical 
space and only has so many plots of land that has potential to be 
developed.  One of the routes that the council has gone down to tackle 
the housing crisis at speed is to set up opportunity areas for private 
sector development.  One of the outcomes of that is that private sector 
development delivers less social homes because the funding model isn't 
there for high levels or 100% social homes building programmes.  What 
we want the council to understand is what has happened with these 
opportunity areas: 

 

  how many social homes will be delivered across all the different 
opportunity areas that exist, have been delivered or will be 
delivered; 

 

  what could have happened if the council had had a programme of 
buying that land and developing capital housing plots over a longer 
period of time. 

 

13



14 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

 
5. That the cabinet consider stating that in the instance of any council 

estate regeneration in the future, that the first preferred option in all 
circumstances be to deliver such a programme as local authority 
homes.  If the council wishes to propose a partnership agreement with 
private or third sector organisations in future, then the cabinet must lay 
forth in a report why an in-house/council controlled regeneration is not 
possible, and any such report must be considered through the council’s 
overview and scrutiny functions.  

 
Reasons: 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
-  Much of the community evidence highlighted the difficulties of delivering 

regeneration schemes through partnership agreements.  This is 
something the council has already learned from the taking of actions 
over the last 10 years, entering into regeneration partnership 
agreements out of necessity.  Now that the council’s financing 
arrangements have been changed, it is no longer pursuing that route, 
and this is reflected in the Borough Plan.  This recommendation seeks 
to make clear in the council’s decision making processes, the priority 
that regeneration of any estates that do need programmes, is always 
delivered in house as the first option.  Note: ‘In house’ in this context is 
meant as not being delivered in partnership with private or third sector 
organisations. 

 
35% Campaign 

 
-  Net loss of social rented housing. 
 
-  New homes being provided by regeneration are way beyond the means 

of those in the most acute housing need. Lack of social rent properties. 
 
-  Affordable homes, not the equivalent or proper replacement for the 

council, and social rented housing lost. 
 
6.  Specifically for transport related aspects of regeneration the Council 

should: 
 

(i)  develop and improve its strategy for the implementation of better 
sustainable networks whether large or small as a catalyst for 
regeneration in the borough. 

 
(ii)  seek to promote and introduce healthy streets through more localise 

street space schemes providing feeder links to create more of a 
community way in or out routes.   

 

14



15 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

Reasons: 
 

Walworth Society 
 

-  “Streets and their purpose is changing with the response to the 
pandemic and the declaration of a Climate Emergency.  Community 
seeking active conversation about the design of the streets, and how 
they need to evolve especially in relation to car parking and landscaping 
before these are set in stone.” 

 
35% Campaign 

 
-  “Concerned about the number of consented, but non-viable 

developments, in the Old Kent Rd Opportunity Area, amounting to about 
5,000 consented homes, particularly in the light of doubt and delays to 
the Bakerloo Line Extension (BLE).  These developments all include 
35% affordable housing, but depend to a large degree on the BLE for 
the uplift in land values that will make them viable and deliverable.” 

 
Transport Providers 

 
-  “New rail links can make parts of London viable places to attract major 

investments in new homes and create jobs. These high volume services 
provide the capacity to support major growth sustainably. The significant 
change in transport connectivity and perceived permanence of these 
investments increases developer confidence and lowers their risk.” 

 
-  “Ensuring safe and accessible walking and cycling facilities and 

delivering Healthy Streets to make the area accessible all for those who 
travel through, live, and spend time there.” 

 
-  “The [Bakerloo Line] extension would benefit existing and new 

communities & businesses by: • Offering a new direct, high frequency 
link into central London • Providing capacity for at least 60,000 extra 
journeys in both the morning and evening peak periods • Relieving 
congestion on roads, reducing CO2 emissions and air pollution • 
Significantly reducing journey times along the extension to central 
London • Providing an Underground train every two to three minutes 
between Lewisham and central London • Increasing the attractiveness 
and viability of developments, delivering new homes and jobs in south 
east London.” 

 
-  “Healthy Streets scheme proposed along the A2 Corridor, from East 

Street (north) to Ilderton Road (south) • To support the growth and 
provide pedestrian, cycle and public transport improvements along Old 
Kent Road • TfL is working with LB Southwark and GLA colleagues on 
the proposals and other measures to complement the improvements.” 

 

15



16 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday 2 March 2022 
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the work programme as at 2 March 2022 be noted. 
 

  
The meeting ended at 10.15 pm 
 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 
 

16



1 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Saturday 21 May 2022 
 

 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

MINUTES of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee held on Saturday 21 May 
2022 Southwark Cathedral, Montague Close, London Bridge, SE1 9DA (at the 
rise of Council Assembly). 
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Ian Wingfield (Chair) 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 
Councillor Ellie Cumbo 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Sunny Lambe 
Councillor Margy Newens 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor Leo Pollak 
 

  

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Everton Roberts, Head of Scrutiny 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS 
URGENT  

 

 There were no late items. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations. 
 

17



2 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Saturday 21 May 2022 
 

4. SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS FOR 2022-23  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the size and composition of the overview and scrutiny committee as 

agreed by council assembly as detailed below be noted. 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 Labour (9) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1.  Ian Wingfield (Chair) Irina Von Wiese (Vice-Chair) 

2.  Jason Ochere Victor Chamberlain 

3. Margy Newens  

4. Suzanne Abachor  

5. Ellie Cumbo  

6 Leo Pollak  

7 Jon Hartley  

8 Sunny Lambe   

9 Laura Johnson  

Reserves 
 

 Labour (9) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1. Sarah King Graham Neale 

2. Sandra Rhule  Rachel Bentley 

3. Cleo Soanes   

4. Sam Dalton  

5. Emily Hickson  

6. Michael Situ  

7. Sam Foster  

8. Richard Leeming   

9. Esme Hicks  

Voting co-optee places (4) (Able to vote on Education Function 
related issues only) 
 

1. Church of England Diocese 
representative 

Martin Brecknell 

2. Roman Catholic Diocese 
representative 

Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer 

3. Elected parent governor 
representative x2 

Marcin Jagodzinski 
Mannah Kargbo 

 
 
 
 
 
 

18



3 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Saturday 21 May 2022 
 

Remit: As set out in paragraph 6.1 of the constitution, with specific scrutiny 
responsibility in respect of: 
 

 Council’s policy and budget framework 

 Regeneration 

 Human Resources and the council’s role as an employer and corporate 

practice generally 

 Customer access issues, including digital strategy, information technology 

and communications 

 The council’s equalities and diversity programmes 

 

2. That scrutiny commissions be established as set out below for the 2022-23 
municipal year, with the chairs and vice-chairs as listed.  The Health and 
Social Care Scrutiny commission to be given responsibility for Health matters, 
and the Housing and Community Safety Scrutiny commission to be given 
responsibility for Crime and Disorder matters. 

 

(Remits:  Each commission will have within their remit, oversight responsibility for 
the areas reflected in their titles.  Detail of the specific areas of responsibility to be 
drawn from the cabinet member portfolios following the meeting. 
 
As and when required, the overview and scrutiny committee may call upon a 
commission to undertake a piece of work that does not necessarily sit with another 
commission’s identified remit of responsibility.) 
 
 
 
Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1.  Jason Ochere (Chair) Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) 

2.  Chloe Tomlinson David Watson 

3. Joseph Vambe  

4. Cassandra Brown  

5. Renata Hamvas  

Reserves 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1. Maggie Browning Victor Chamberlain 

2. Bethan Roberts Irina Von Wiese 

3. Laura Johnson  

4. Victoria Mills  

5. Sunny Lambe  

19



4 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Saturday 21 May 2022 
 

Voting Co-optee places 
 

1.  Church of England Diocese 
representative 

Martin Brecknell 

2. Roman Catholic Diocese 
representative 

Lynnette Murphy-O’Dwyer 

3. Elected Parent Governor 
representatives x 2 

Marcin Jagodzinski 
Mannah Kargbo 
 

Non-Voting Co-optee places 
 

 To be considered at the discretion of the commission. 

 
 
Environment and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1.  Margy Newens (Chair) Graham Neale (Vice-Chair) 

2.  Ketzia Harper David Watson 

3. Emily Hickson  

4. Reggie Popoola  

5. Sarah King   

Reserves 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1. John Batteson Rachel Bentley 

2. Kimberly McIntosh Adam Hood 

3. Natasha Ennin  

4. Gavin Edwards  

5. Renata Hamvas  

Non-voting co-optee places 
 

 To be considered at the discretion of the commission. 

 
 
Health and Social Care Scrutiny Commission 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1.  Suzanne Abachor (Chair) Maria Linforth-Hall (Vice-Chair) 

2.  Charlie Smith Hamish McCallum 

3. Esme Dobson  

4. Naima Ali  

5. Sam Dalton  

Reserves 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1.  Kath Whittam David Watson 

20



5 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Saturday 21 May 2022 
 

2. Emily Hickson Victor Chamberlain 

3. Natasha Ennin  

4. Barrie Hargrove  

5. Sabina Emmanuel  

Non Voting Co-optee places 
 
 To be considered at the discretion of the commission. 

 
 
Housing and Community Safety Scrutiny Commission 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1.  Ellie Cumbo (Chair) Jane Salmon (Vice-Chair) 

2.  Barrie Hargrove  Emily Tester 

3. Esme Hicks  

4. Sam Foster  

5. Portia Mwangangye  

Reserves 
 

 Labour (5) Liberal Democrats (2) 

1.  Leo Pollak Hamish McCallum 

2. Sam Dalton Adam Hood 

3. Joseph Vambe  

4. Ketzia Harper  

5. Kim McIntosh  

Non-voting co-optee places (3) 
 

1. Tenants Forum Tbc 

2. Homeowners Forum Tbc 

3. Southwark Tenant 
Management Organisations 
Committee 

Tbc 

 Additional non-voting co-optee places to be considered at the 
discretion of the commission. 

 
 
3. Nominations to Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

 

 Our Healthier South East London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee (2 places) 

Labour – Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Liberal Democrats – Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall 

 
 
Note:  No work programme topics were put forward at this meeting. 
 

21



6 
 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - Saturday 21 May 2022 
 

 The meeting ended at 1.17 pm 
 
 

 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 
 

22



 

 
 

 

1 

  

 

Item No.  
6. 

 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
6 July 2022 

Meeting Name: 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Report title: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Commission Work Programmes 2022-23 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

N/a 

From: 
 

Head of Scrutiny 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the committee consider and agree annual work programmes for 

overview and scrutiny committee and its commissions for the 2022-23 
municipal year. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
2. Paragraph 6 of the overview and scrutiny procedure rules states that terms 

of reference of the overview and scrutiny committee will be: 
 
a)  to appoint commissions, agreeing the size, composition and terms of 

reference and to appoint chairs and vice chairs 
b)  to agree the annual work programme for OSC and the commissions 
c)  to consider requests from the cabinet and/or council assembly for 

scrutiny reviews 
d)  to exercise the right to call-in for reconsideration of executive decisions 

made but not yet implemented 
e)  to arrange for relevant functions in respect of health scrutiny to be 

exercised by an overview and scrutiny committee of another local 
authority where the council considers that another local authority 
would be better placed to undertake those relevant functions, and that 
local authority agrees to exercise those functions 

f)  if appropriate, to appoint a joint overview and scrutiny committee with 
two or more local authorities and arrange for the relevant functions of 
those authorities to be exercised by the joint committee 

g)  to periodically review overview and scrutiny procedures to ensure that 
the function is operating effectively 

h)  to report annually to all councillors on the previous year’s scrutiny 
activity 

i)  to scrutinise matters in respect of: 
 

 the council’s policy and budget framework 

 regeneration 

23
Agenda Item 6



 

 
 

 

2 

  

 human resources and the council’s role as an employer and 
corporate practice generally 

 customer access issues, including digital strategy, information 
technology and communications 

 the council’s equalities and diversity programmes. 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
3. In accordance with the provision set out in 2(a) above, the overview and 

scrutiny committee established four commissions for the 2022-23 
municipal year at its meeting held on 21 May 2022. 
 

  Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission  

  Environment and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission 

  Housing and Community Safety Scrutiny Commission 

  Health and Social Care Scrutiny Commission 
 
4. In accordance with the provision set out in 2(b) above, overview and 

scrutiny committee is being recommended to agree scrutiny work 
programmes for the 2022-23 municipal year. 

 
5. The general terms of reference of the scrutiny commissions are set out in 

the council’s constitution (overview and scrutiny procedure rules - 
paragraph 5).  The constitution states that: 

 
Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will: 
 
a) review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection 

with the discharge of any of the council’s functions 
 

b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 
cabinet and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and 
over time in areas covered by its terms of reference 

 
c) review and scrutinise the performance of the council in relation to its 

policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas 
 

d) question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and 
performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and 
targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, 
initiatives or projects and about their views on issues and proposals 
affecting the area 

 
e) assist council assembly and the cabinet in the development of its 

budget and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues 
 

f)  make reports and recommendations to the cabinet and or council 
assembly arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process 

 

24



 

 
 

 

3 

  

g) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants 
 

h) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people 
are enhanced by collaborative working 

 
i)  review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the 

area and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the 
scrutiny committee and local people about their activities and 
performance 

 
j)  conduct research and consultation on the analysis of policy issues and 

possible options 
 

k) question and gather evidence from any other person (with their 
consent) 

 
l)  consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 

community participation in the scrutiny process and in the 
development of policy options 

 
m) conclude inquiries promptly and normally within six months. 

 
6. Attached as an appendix are the proposed remits of overview and 

scrutiny committee and its commissions based on the cabinet portfolio 
responsibilities set out in the council constitution.  This document is for 
reference purposes only and has been produced to align the scrutiny 
function with council activity and assist with directing potential issues for 
consideration to the correct committee/commission undertaking actions 
referred to in paragraph 5 above. 

 
7. The work programmes are a standing item on the overview and scrutiny 

committee and commission agendas and enables the 
committee/commissions to consider, monitor and plan issues for 
consideration at each meeting. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 

Council Constitution 
 

 Section 3.3 - Cabinet Portfolios 

 Section 9 - Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

 

Southwark Council 
Website  

Everton Roberts 
020 7525 7221 
 

Link: 
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=425&MId=7427&Ver=4&Info=1  
 

25

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=425&MId=7427&Ver=4&Info=1


 

 
 

 

4 

  

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 

Appendix 1 Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Committee/Commission 
Scrutiny Remits 
 

 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Everton Roberts, Head of Scrutiny 

Report Author Everton Roberts, Head of Scrutiny 

Version Final 

Dated 28 June 2022 

Key Decision? No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /  
CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included 

Director of Law and Governance No No 

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance 

No No 

Cabinet Member  No No 

Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team 28 June 2022 

 

26



1 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee/Commission Scrutiny Remits 

This document sets out the remits of the overview and scrutiny committee/commission 

in relation to the various areas of cabinet member responsibilities listed in the council 

constitution.  This information has been extracted from section 3.3 of the constitution 

[Cabinet Portfolios 2022-23]. Due to individual cabinet portfolios cutting across the 

remit of more than one committee/commission it has been necessary to divide up 

individual cabinet portfolios to reflect those areas relevant to the commissions, as such 

portfolios will appear within the remit of more than one commission but with only the 

relevant portfolio areas contained. 

Note:  This document is for reference purposes and only reflects information detailed 

in the cabinet member portfolios.  Given the wider remit of scrutiny, including the 

review and scrutiny of performance of other public bodies, it should not be viewed as 

a full list of issues the overview and scrutiny committee/commissions can scrutinise. 

Information relating to the full remit of overview and scrutiny committee and its 

commissions is contained in section 9 of the council constitution [overview and scrutiny 

procedure rules]. 

Contents 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee – remit ............................................................ 3 

Leader of the Council .............................................................................................. 3 

Cabinet Member for Finance, Democracy and Digital ............................................ 3 

Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development ............... 4 

Cabinet Member for Equalities, Neighbourhoods and Leisure ................................ 4 

Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing ............................................................. 5 

Cabinet Member for Parks, Streets and Clean Air .................................................. 5 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission – remit ............................. 6 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Education .. 6 

Cabinet Member for Finance, Democracy and Digital ............................................ 6 

Cabinet Member for Jobs, Business and Town Centres ......................................... 6 

Cabinet Member for Equalities, Neighbourhoods and Leisure ................................ 7 

Environment and Community Engagement Scrutiny Commission - remit ......... 8 

Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development ............... 8 

Cabinet Member for Finance, Democracy and Digital ............................................ 8 

Cabinet Member for Equalities, Neighbourhoods and Leisure ................................ 8 

Cabinet Member for Parks, Streets and Clean Air .................................................. 9 

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Commission - remit ......................................... 10 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Education 10 

Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing ........................................................... 10 

27

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s107100/Cabinet%20Portfolios%202022-23%20May%202022.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s107122/Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Procedure%20Rules%20May%202019.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s107122/Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Procedure%20Rules%20May%202019.pdf


2 
 

Housing and Community Safety Scrutiny Commission - remit ......................... 11 

Cabinet Member for Council Homes and Homelessness ..................................... 11 

Cabinet Member for Community Safety ................................................................ 12 

Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development ............. 13 

Cabinet Member for Parks, Streets and Clean Air ................................................ 13 

 

  

28



3 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – remit 
 

Leader of the Council 

Portfolio 

 Setting the political and strategic direction for the council  

 The Borough Plan and Council Delivery Plan  

 External Affairs, campaigns and public affairs  

 Emergency planning and business continuity  

 Major projects oversight  

 Strategic partnerships and relationships with government, NHS, City Hall, the 
Mayor of London and major anchor organisations within the borough  

 Performance management of the Cabinet and Deputy Cabinet Members  
 
Delivering commitments 
 
No commitments specified in cabinet portfolio. 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance, Democracy and Digital 

Portfolio 

 The Council’s budget and financial strategy  

 Performance and financial management across the council  

 The Council's response to the cost of living crisis  

 Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS)  

 Council’s response to welfare reform  

 Customer services, the call centre, complaints and members’ enquires  

 Digital inclusion  

 Digital infrastructure, improving broadband and the free WiFi network  

 Corporate IT and IT shared services and the council’s website  

 Pension Funds  

 Legal and Constitutional services  

 Electoral services, electoral registration and postal vote uptake  

 Registrar's and Coroners services  

 Human resources and workforce training and skills  

 Increasing equality and diversity in the council’s workforce  

 Council’s internal relationship with staff trade unions  

 Facilities and the Operational Estate 
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Establishing a new Southwark Cost of Living Fund  
o Make the council’s pension fund zero carbon by 2030 
o Provide free access to the internet through our network of community 

buildings  

29



4 
 

o Stand against big companies who dodge their taxes  
o Keep council tax low  

 

Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development 

Portfolio 

 Ensuring development in Southwark:  
 
 Delivers for the whole community  
 Meets low carbon and net-zero ambitions 
 Increases the supply of new genuinely affordable homes 
 Creates economic growth that works for all Southwark residents  
 Improves biodiversity and enhances the public realm 
 Meets the social infrastructure needs of the population, including the 

needs for education, health and community facilities  
 

 Building control, planning policy and performance  

 Area Action Plans, including Old Kent Road and Canada Water  

 Major infrastructure projects, including the Bakerloo Line Extension  

 Strategic Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 payments  

 Council owned commercial properties and commercial assets  
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Launch a Land Commission to identify how more land in Southwark can be 
freed up for public good 

o Back local people to establish Community Land Trusts, housing cooperatives 
and partnerships  

o Deliver brand new parks at Canada Water and off the Old Kent Road 
 

Cabinet Member for Equalities, Neighbourhoods and Leisure 

Portfolio 

 Developing the council’s approach to creating successful neighbourhoods  

 Equalities  

 Southwark Community Support Alliance 

 Southwark Stands Together programme  

 Increasing the voice and influence of black, Asian and minority ethnic 
communities  

 Promoting equality and diversity in the cultural and arts sectors  

 Women’s rights  

 LGBTQ+ rights  

 Faith communities  

 Borough of Sanctuary, refugees and asylum seekers  

 Volunteering and the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) 

30



5 
 

 Community grants and investment, including: Local Community Infrastructure 
Levy (LCIL); Common Purpose Fund; Cleaner, Greener, Safer Fund (CGS); 
Democracy Fund; Neighbourhoods Fund; and, Resident Participation Fund  

 Community buildings  

 Advice Services  

 No recourse to public funds (NRPF)  

 Civic issues  
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Ensure your local area is a great place to live, with all the essentials of life 
close to your home  

o Empower communities to shape the places they live in and make decisions 
about issues which affect their lives 

o Ensure the whole council is focussed on closing the gap in life chances within 
our borough  

o Invest £20 million in community-led action to make Southwark fairer, greener 
and safer, working with residents to set priorities for their neighbourhoods  

o Strengthen Southwark’s network of community-led hubs 
o Celebrate Southwark’s rich diversity, funding local community groups to 

deliver events and festivals that showcase the diverse histories, music, food 
and art of our communities  

o Build on Southwark's Borough of Sanctuary commitment  

o Establish a ‘Southwark Together’ civic leadership programme  

o Work with the community to establish a Latin American cultural space  

o Secure a new permanent LGBTQ+ cultural space  

 

Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 

Delivering commitments 

o Establish a new Inclusive Southwark Forum 
 

Cabinet Member for Parks, Streets and Clean Air 

Portfolio 

 Street cleaning, fly-tipping and graffiti  

 Estate cleaning and grounds maintenance  

 Pest control  

 Flooding, flood defences, internal waterways, moorings, marinas and 
associated infrastructure  

 Cemeteries and crematorium services  
 

Delivering commitments 
 

o Keep your streets and estates clean  
  

31



6 
 

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission – 

remit 
 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and 

Education 

Portfolio 

 Play  

 Early years’ services, health visiting and children and family centres  

 Child care  

 Schools, nurseries and special education needs  

 Free healthy school and nursery meals and fruit  

 Children’s social care, corporate parenting and care leavers  

 Fostering and adoption  

 Unaccompanied asylum seeking children  

 Young people and youth services  

 Youth offending services  

 Further, higher and adult education  

 Relationship with Southwark College  
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Put our new Southwark Youth Parliament in the driving seat 
o Launch a new sure-start for teenagers service  
o Local high quality playgrounds, including play equipment for children with 

disabilities  

o Keep school standards high  

o Launch a School Inclusion Charter to prevent permanent exclusions and end 
off-rolling.  

o Launch ‘Let's Go Zero’ schools network  

o Create a ‘We Are Southwark’ curriculum  
 

Cabinet Member for Finance, Democracy and Digital 

Portfolio 

 Procurement and social value  
 

Cabinet Member for Jobs, Business and Town Centres 

Portfolio 

 Local economic strategy  

 Town centres and highstreets  

 Community Wealth Building  

 Growing Southwark’s key industries such as; life sciences, green jobs, 
hospitality, cultural and construction  

 Support for local businesses, cooperatives and social enterprises  

32



7 
 

 Increasing employment, apprenticeships, internships and work experience  

 Pre-employment programmes  

 18 year old and care leavers’ employment, education and training (working 
with the Cabinet member for Children, Young People and Education)  

 Supporting businesses to engage with schools and colleges (working with the 
Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Education)  

 Promoting equality and diversity in the private sector  

 Affordable workspaces  

 Markets  

 Relationship with Jobcentre Plus  
 

Delivering commitments 
 

o Create 250 paid internships for young people from disadvantaged 
backgrounds  

o Create 2,000 apprenticeships and 3,000 training opportunities  

o Deliver free support to get a job for people who face the most barriers  

o Create more career opportunities for local people  

o Creating a new Southwark Living Wage Unit to tackle low pay  

o Champion workers' rights and the benefits of trade union membership  

o Create 2,000 green jobs and open a new Green Skills Centre  

o Launch a new Thriving High Streets Fund  

o Establish a world class health innovation district  

o Back Southwark residents to start more businesses, cooperatives and social 
enterprises  

o Keep more wealth within our community, ensuring the council and other big 
institutions in Southwark buy more goods and services locally  

o Make Southwark one of the most digitally connected boroughs (working with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance, Digital and Democracy)  

 

Cabinet Member for Equalities, Neighbourhoods and Leisure 

Delivering commitments 
 

o Expand our library service even more, increasing the range of services you 
can access through them  

o Open a new library on the Aylesbury and an expanded library on the 
Kingswood Estate  

o Provide free English, maths and digital skills courses at your local library or 
family centre  

 

  

33



8 
 

Environment and Community Engagement Scrutiny 

Commission - remit 
 

Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development 

Portfolio 

 Reducing carbon emissions and promoting climate justice  

 Green energy  
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Halve the council's carbon emissions again by 2026  
o Launch Southwark Green Finance  
o Stronger planning rules to make sure all new developments meet high green 

standards  
o Streamline planning applications for new and retrofit projects that meet high 

green standards  
o Build on the work of the Southwark Climate Change Citizen Jury 
o Establish a free green homes advice service for homeowners to help you 

make your home greener and lower carbon  

o Streamline planning applications to green your home  

o Create a ‘retrofit learning network’ to bring together experts to share 
information on the potential costs, available discounts and carbon savings 
from making your homes more environmentally friendly  

 

Cabinet Member for Finance, Democracy and Digital 

Delivering commitments 
 

o Launch a new Southwark Energy Savers service 
 

Cabinet Member for Equalities, Neighbourhoods and Leisure 

Portfolio 

 Community engagement, participation and development 

 Leisure services, including indoor and outdoor sports and gym facilities  

 Working with local sports clubs and groups  

 Libraries, culture, heritage and events  

 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Establish a new in-house Active Southwark Service designed to help you stay 
healthy and fit  

 
 
 
 

34



9 
 

Cabinet Member for Parks, Streets and Clean Air 

Portfolio 

 Parks, trees and biodiversity  

 Transport policy and travel strategy  

 Active travel, walking and cycling  

 Public transport and accessible travel  

 Relationship with TfL  

 Highways and parking 
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Deliver more high quality green spaces and parks 
o Plant 20,000 trees and create more tree canopy cover  

o Improve air quality and road safety at every Southwark school  

o design safer, greener and healthier streets and routes for walking and cycling  

o Work with TfL to reduce traffic on main roads and make bus journeys quicker 
and more reliable  

o Ensuring older and younger people, women and our Black, Asian and minority 
ethnic communities all have a full say, so we design streets and public 
transport that works for everyone  

o Deliver on our Equal Pavements Pledge  

o Make Southwark a Cycle Friendly Borough.  

o Offer free cycle lessons for all Southwark residents  

o Double the number of cycle hangars  

o More segregated cycle lanes and extending cycle hire  

o Create new ways for residents on low incomes to access an affordable bike  

o Encourage people to switch to less polluting cars  

o Pilot incentives to residents to give up their cars altogether  

o Deliver 1000 more electric vehicle charging points in Southwark  

o Help businesses switch to zero pollution delivery vehicles  
o Work with the Mayor of London to upgrade Southwark’s train and tube 

stations  
o Campaign with the Mayor of London to protect and improve public transport 
o Ensure Southwark has one of the highest recycling rates in inner London, 

including extending food waste recycling to estates  

o Upgrade street and estate lighting across the borough, installing clearer, 
safer, greener LEDs  

  

35



10 
 

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Commission - remit 
 

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and 

Education 

Delivering commitments 
 

o Guarantee mental health support for all Southwark children and young people 
o Support new families, ensuring you have a family centre close to where you 

live 
 

Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing 

Portfolio 

 COVID-19  

 Older people  

 Adults with disabilities  

 Public health, including health improvement, protection and intelligence  

 Adult social care, including nursing and care homes  

 Local health services, including GP practices  

 Integration of health and social care services  

 Childhood obesity (working with the Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People and Education)  

 Drug and alcohol services  

 Sexual health, contraception and HIV  

 Commissioning of supported, extra care and sheltered housing 
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Make Southwark a Right to Food Borough  
o Ensure all Southwark residents can access mental wellbeing support  
o Reduce inequalities in access to healthcare  
o Expand our Community Health Ambassadors network  
o Provide a defibrillator (AED) for every school and in public buildings  
o Introduce support for all unpaid carers  
o Roll out our new Residential Care Charter  
o Every care home having a Family Forum  
o Open a new nursing home and more extra care housing  
o Seek opportunities to bring social care services in house  
o Campaign to keep our NHS in public ownership 
o Establish a modern centre for Black African and Caribbean elders run by and 

for the community they serve 
 
  

36



11 
 

Housing and Community Safety Scrutiny Commission - 

remit 
 

Cabinet Member for Council Homes and Homelessness 

Portfolio 

 Southwark’s Housing Strategy  

 Management of the council’s homes, including sheltered and extra care 
homes  

 Council housing repairs and major works services  

 Delivery of new council homes, including older people’s homes  

 Tenant and homeowner involvement, including relationships with Tenants and 
Resident Associations (TRAs) and Tenant Management Organisations 
(TMOs)  

 Services and advice for council tenants, leaseholder and freeholder  

 Maintenance of tenants and residents halls and related facilities on our 
estates  

 Housing allocations and lettings  

 Management of council owned temporary accommodation  

 Homes for Gypsy, Roma and traveller communities  

 Housing fire safety, cladding and remediation  

 Relationship with housing associations  

 Tackling empty homes and absentee landlords 
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Start at least 1,000 more council homes by 2026  

o Start building 500 homes for key workers  

o Build new council homes for older people  

o Increase support for council tenants if you want to downsize  

o Launch a Good Lettings Agency  

o Guarantee support to everyone who is on the street in Southwark to access a 
home of their own  

o Campaign for the government action needed to end rough sleeping for good  

o Ensuring repairs to council homes are done right first time  

o Clear the backlog of repairs that has resulted from the pandemic within one 
year  

o Launch a new resident-led repairs board to oversee progress  

o Deliver major improvements to the Aylesbury, Tustin, Ledbury and Abbeyfield 
estates  

o Provide more support to start a Tenants and Residents Association or to run 
key services on your estate  

o Provide free independent advice and mediation for council leaseholders  

o Support homeowners affected by the Cladding Crisis  

o Make all of our future council homes projects net zero council homes  

o Piloting Southwark’s first ‘Passive House’ council homes  

37



12 
 

o Make our existing council homes warmer and greener  

o Take a zero tolerance approach to empty homes and use all our powers to 
bring more long-term empty homes back into use  

 

Cabinet Member for Community Safety 

Portfolio 

 Reducing crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance  

 Violence Against Woman and Girls (VAWG)  

 Community Harm and Exploitation Hub  

 Modern day slavery  

 Community wardens  

 The Southwark Young Advisors  

 Public spaces protection orders (PSPOs)  

 Strengthening community relations with the police and promoting equitable 
policing  

 Private rented housing and short-term lets  

 Licensing, Trading Standards, Environmental Health and gambling 
 
Delivering commitments 
 

o Launch a new anti-social behaviour task force  
o Invest in our CCTV network  
o Work to end youth violence  
o Work with the local community and police to ensure stop and search is used 

fairly  
o Campaign with the Mayor of London to fully reverse damaging police cuts  
o Challenge misogyny, working with our schools, employers and community 

groups to deliver a major campaign to promote positive male behaviours 
towards women and make clear male harassment and violence towards 
women will not be tolerated in Southwark  

o Work with women to help them feel safe in our borough  
o Improve public spaces where women tell us they feel unsafe  
o Request all organisations that operate in Southwark sign our Women’s Safety 

Charter  
o Establish a ground-breaking Women’s Safety Centre  
o Work with the Metropolitan Police to tackle male violence against women  
o Make clear there is no place for hate in Southwark, taking a zero tolerance 

approach to hate crimes  
o Roll out more protections and support for private renters, extending our 

licensing scheme  
o Funding free advice services so support is there if your landlord is acting 

unfairly  
o Campaign for further powers to regulate the sector including three-year 

tenancies and powers to control rents  

  

38



13 
 

Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency and Sustainable Development 

Delivering commitments 
 

o Use our planning powers to robustly require new social rent homes  

 

Cabinet Member for Parks, Streets and Clean Air 

Delivering commitments 
 

o A new right to community gardens or food growing plots on estates  
 

39



 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 22-23 
 

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 
 
NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Everton Roberts Tel: 020 7525 7221 

 

 

Name No of 
copies 

Name No of 
copies 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 

 
Paper copy 
 
Councillor Victor Chamberlain 

 
Electronic Versions (no hard copy) 
 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
Councillor Irina Von Wiese 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Councillor Ellie Cumbo 
Councillor Jon Hartley 
Councillor Laura Johnson 
Councillor Sunny Lambe 
Councillor Margy Newens 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor Leo Pollak 
 
Martin Brecknell  
Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer  
Marcin Jagodzinski 
Mannah Kargbo 
 
 

RESERVES 
 
Councillor Rachel Bentley 
Councillor Sam Dalton 
Councillor Sam Foster 
Councillor Esme Hicks 
Councillor Emily Hickson 
Councillor Sarah King 
Councillor Richard Leeming 
Councillor Graham Neale 
Councillor Sandra Rhule 
Councillor Michael Situ 
Councillor Cleo Soanes 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1 
 
 
 

Officers 
 

Joseph Brown  – Senior Cabinet 
Officer 
 
Pavle Popovic – Liberal Democrat 
Group Office 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated: June 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes - 21 May 2022

	6 Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Commission Work Programmes 2022-23
	Appendix 1: Proposed Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Commission Remits 2022-23

	 

